7867 Convoy Court, Suite 302, San Diego, CA 92111
(858) 384-2139 www.publicwatchdogs.org

Monday, November 2, 2020
Kevin Williams, Director
USNRC
Division of Materials Safety, Security, State, and Tribal Programs
Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards
Washington, D.C. 20555-0001
Re:

NRC’s September 1, 2020, response to petition requesting enforcement
action under section 2.206 of Title 10 of the Code of Federal Regulations
against Southern California Edison related to decommissioning operations at
the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station Units 2 and 3

Dear Mr. Williams:
This correspondence is in response to your September 1, 2020, rejection letter related to Public
Watchdogs’ 10 CFR 2.2061 petition dated February 5, 20202
We insist that the petition be accepted under the guidance provided in the Directive Handbook
(DH) 8.11, Section III.C.1(b)(ii) for Management Directive (MD) 8.11 (ADAMS Accession No.
ML18176A147).
We also formally supplement our original 10 CFR 2.206 petition and request -- within the
provisions of 10 CFR 2.2023 -- that the NRC order Holtec and Southern California Edison
(SCE), to provide an analysis of a flooding event where all 73 Vertical Ventilation Modules
(VVMs) are completely submerged with water and debris. This analysis must include the
radiological consequences and impact to the public and the environment. The analysis must also
demonstrate compliance with 10 CFR 20 limits. A description of the recovery from this event
must also be provided by Holtec and Southern California Edison, and incorporated into the
Technical Specifications and Bases provided in the UMAX FSAR (ML18192B094.).

1

“§ 2.206 Requests for action under this subpart (a) Any person may file a request to institute a proceeding pursuant to § 2.202 to
modify, suspend, or revoke a license, or for any other action as may be proper” https:/bit.ly/3e3lkAt
2
Public Watchdogs 2.206 Petition at https://bit.ly/2ThErwW
3

“§ 2.202 Orders. (a) The Commission may institute a proceeding to modify, suspend, or revoke a license or to take such other

action as may be proper by serving on the licensee or other person subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission an order that
will:
(1) Allege the violations with which the licensee or other person subject to the Commission's jurisdiction [emphasis added] is
charged, or the potentially hazardous conditions or other facts deemed to be sufficient ground for the proposed action, and
specify the action proposed;
(2) Provide that the licensee or other person must file a written answer to the order under oath or affirmation within twenty (20)
days of its date, or such other time as may be specified in the order;” https://bit.ly/2HLYTDU

This supplement request does not modify any of our previous requests identified in our original
petition.
Accordingly, we enclose the declaration of our subject matter expert, Paul Blanch, in support of
this demand. As you may be aware, Mr. Blanch was intimately involved with the Indian Point
Office of Inspector General investigation which stated that the “NRC misrepresented the
assumptions used in the follow-up bounding analysis”.
We believe that similar misrepresentations by the NRC have occurred at the San Onofre Nuclear
Generating Station. In the case of Indian Point, the NRC failed to “assess the impact” of a 60minute leak in a 42-inch natural gas pipeline at a nuclear power plant. At San Onofre, the NRC
has failed to assess the effect of simultaneous flooding of all Vertical Ventilation Modules
(VVMs), otherwise known as “Canister Enclosure Cavities.”
I am deeply troubled that your September 1, 2020,4 letter rejecting the Public Watchdogs’ 2.206
petition, replicates the same type of contentions that Mr. Blanch received from the NRC in
response to his petition on the gas lines at Indian Point. You may recall that the issue was later
investigated by the NRC’s Office of Investigation (OIG). This investigation (Event Inquiry 16024)5 determined that the NRC misrepresented assumptions and stated that the NRC provided
numerous citations of “inaccurate” information to Mr. Blanch and the public.
As the enclosed declaration attests, all of the NRC’s references to flooding analysis consider the
unlikely possibility that only one cask will be flooded.
Should a flooding event occur, all 73 canisters will be simultaneously inundated. All spent fuel
cooling will eventually be lost as there are no provisions within the Technical Specifications
Bases as described in the Holtec UMAX FSAR to prevent the cooling loss. It is self-evident that
the spent fuel will exceed its maximum temperature within 32 hours should cooling fail to be
restored.
Contrary to the statements by the NRC, SCE, and Holtec, the consequences of a mass-flooding
event have been intentionally ignored by the NRC.
Technical Specifications Bases, B.1 clearly assumes and requires cooling to be restored within 8
hours per VVM and that the recovery from a single flooding event will take weeks or months. If
the cooling is not restored in each of the 73 VVMs within 32 hours, temperature design limits
will be exceeded.
Based your response and the concerns expressed in Mr. Blanch’s enclosed declaration we
formally disagree with your assumptions and insist that our petition be accepted as directed
under the guidance provided in the Directive Handbook (DH) 8.11, Section III.C.1(b)(ii) for
Management Directive (MD) 8.11 (ADAMS Accession No. ML18176A147).
Sincerely,

4

5

NRC’s response to Petition Requesting Enforcement Action Under Section 2.206 at https://bit.ly/34p1e0k
See OIG EVENT INQUIRY 16-024 DATED February 13, 2020, at https://bit.ly/3mhWsb2

Charles Langley
Executive Director
Public Watchdogs
Enc:

Sworn Declaration of Paul Blanch

CC:

Robert J. Feitel
NRC Inspector General

DECLARATION OF PAUL BLANCH
My name is Paul Blanch. I am over the age of 18, competent to testify and have personal
knowledge of the matters discussed below. Under penalty of perjury, I state the following:
1) I have a bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering, and I am a Registered Professional
Engineer in California (presently inactive) with a specialty in “Control Systems
Engineering.” I have more than 50 years of nuclear operations, engineering and regulatory
experience. Over the past 20 years I have become intimately familiar with the technical and
regulatory issues associated with the storage of spent nuclear fuel, both in Spent Fuel Pools
(SFP) and in dry casks.
2) On October 15, 2014, I submitted a 10 CFR 2.206 to the NRC requesting the NRC to take
enforcement action against Entergy for violating the regulations of 10 CFR 50.9,
“Completeness and Accuracy of Information,” 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, “Quality
Assurance Requirements,” and 10 CFR 50.59, “Changes, Tests, and Experiments.” I
provided numerous examples and direct quotes from IPEC’s 10 CFR 50.59 Safety Evaluation
and Hazard Analysis that I believed violated these regulations.
3) On May 15, 2015, I requested the NRC’s Office of the Inspector General (OIG) to review the
NRC Staff actions7.
4) On September 9, 2015,8 I met with the Chairman of the Commission, Commissioners, Office
of Investigations, Office of Inspector General, NRC’s Office of Enforcement, and the head of
the Petition Review Board.
5) During meetings I alleged significant wrongdoing by the NRC Staff.
6) The OIG commenced its event inquiry “Concerns Pertaining to Gas Transmission Lines at
the Indian Point Nuclear Power Plant Case No. 16-024
7) “OIG found that through the stakeholder’s 2.206 petition and associated concerns – which
were relevant and on point – NRC was presented an opportunity to reevaluate and confirm
work previously conducted that supported the agency’s conclusion that Entergy’s hazards
analysis was reliable. However, NRC failed to thoroughly reexamine the underlying
premises of its analyses and did not accurately communicate its analytical work
performed.” [Emphasis added]
8) The OIG report also stated: “ … NRC misrepresented the assumptions” [emphasis added]
used in the follow-up bounding analysis that was conducted to assess the impact….”
9) Throughout the OIG Inquiry the OIG cited numerous instances where the NRC provided
inaccurate information.
7
8

Letter to Hubert Bell Inspector General dated May 15, 2015
Meeting notes dated September 15, 2015 available in ADAMS

10) In August 2019, I was contracted as a Subject Matter Expert (SME) to review potential
safety, regulatory, and technical issues related to the transfer of the SNF, at San Onofre by
Public Watchdogs.

11) On February 5, 2020, Public Watchdogs filed a 10 CFR 2.206 petition “Procedure for
Imposing Requirements by Order, or for Modification, Suspension, or Revocation of a
License, or for Imposing Civil Penalties.” The NRC’s Executive Director for Operations
referred the petition to the Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards (NMSS) for
appropriate review or action.
12) On September 1, 2020, Mr. Kevin Williams responded to the petition proposing to reject the
petition by inaccurately stating
“PRB’s final determination is that all the concerns identified in the petition that
were not screened out fail to meet the acceptance criteria in MD 8.11, Section
III.C.1(b), because the issues raised in the petition have been “the subject of a
facility-specific or generic NRC staff review,” and none of the circumstances in
Section III.C.1(b)(ii) of MD 8.11 apply. The NMSS Office Director was briefed on
and supported this determination.”
13) Once again, the NRC is providing inaccurate and misleading information to the general
public, Public Watchdogs, and ultimately, the entire nuclear industry.
14) We have made it very clear that up to 73 casks will be simultaneously flooded, resulting in a
complete loss of cooling after the sea water evaporates to a level that blocks air flow. If such
an event occurs, there will be insufficient heat to remove remaining blockage concentrated
salt and sea water.
15) Specific examples of this inaccurate and misleading information from your September 1,
2020, letter are as follows:


“The PRB determined that these concerns have previously been evaluated in NRC
staff licensing reviews and none of the provisions of DH 8.11, Section
III.C.1(b)(ii) applied. Accordingly, the PRB’s determination based on its initial
assessment was to not accept the petition for review.”



“The consequences of flooding at the SONGS ISFSI were addressed in an NRC
letter to Public Watchdogs dated February 26, 2020, (ADAMS Accession No.
ML20038A336) on Page 3 under the heading “Flood Analysis,” in a response to
a previous 2.206 petition.”



“Holtec International, the system Certificate of Compliance (CoC) holder,
provided a flood analysis for the UMAX system in Section 4.6.2.5 of the Final
Safety Analysis Report (FSAR) for the Holtec HI-STORM UMAX dry cask storage
system (ADAMS Accession No. ML18192B094). While this section was redacted

from the public version of the FSAR under 10 CFR 2.390, in response to a
proprietary determination by Holtec International, the outcomes of these analyses
were not withheld under 10 CFR 2.390 and were presented in the FSAR Tables
4.6.9 and 4.6.10. As part of its assessment, the PRB reviewed the flood analysis in
HI-STORM UMAX FSAR Section 4.6.2.5 and determined that the results of the
UMAX flood analyses show that the MPC and its spent fuel contents will remain
below accident temperature limits, under both fully and partially flooded
conditions. The PRB is able to provide the following synopsis of the flood analysis
found in UMAX FSAR Section 4.6.2.5”
16) Each of the above NRC statements (and other references provided) appear to be intentionally
misleading because every cited reference assumes two things: First, that there is only a
single VVM cooling failure event, not 73. Second, that cooling will be restored within 32
hours. In addition, it is unclear whether or not the NRC used a facility-specific or generic
staff review.
The NRC must identify the type of review conducted and make that review public.
17) Based on the references cited by the NRC Staff, it appears the NRC is relying on mitigative
actions within 32 hours. It is therefore reasonable to expect the NRC to answer the questions
raised in this declaration promptly.
18) From August 2, 2020 through August 21, 2020, I exchanged emails with the NRC’s Andrea
Kock with the intent of resolving my safety concerns without using the Allegation or the 10
CFR 2.206 process. My experience with these processes was unsatisfactory. I attempted to
establish a dialog with Andrea Kock. Instead of a dialog, she informed me she could not
discuss my safety concerns and forwarded my safety concerns to Chris Bajwa and the
petition chair Kevin Williams.
19) The following is a list of additional issues which I had planned to discuss9 with Andrea Kock
that remain unanswered, which she clearly stated should be addressed by the 2.206 process.

9



What are the consequences of heat transfer and the effect on fuel
temperatures should a loss of helium occur?



Is criticality a possibility should an MPC become breached and flooded by
seawater?



What are the consequences if all 73 VVMs are flooded and cannot be
returned to operable status within eight or 32 hours? The UMAX FSAR
provides the Bases and the Technical Specification bases for the Holtec Hi-Storm
UMAX Canister Storage System for the ISFSI at San Onofre. The Hi-Storm
UMAX System FSAR Appendix 13.A Section B.1of the Technical
Specifications states: “If the heat removal system has been determined to be
inoperable, it must be restored to operable status within eight hours. Eight hours

Email from Ms. Kock dated August 4, 2020

is a reasonable period of time to take action to remove the obstructions in the air
flow path”


How long can the canisters and spent fuel survive before exceeding limits?
If no action is taken because of delay or site inaccessibility within 32 hours, what
are the consequences?



Is the planned response reasonable?
Can the mitigative actions of the Technical Specifications be implemented
reliably? Will they work? Can they be performed by personnel available on site
within the required timeframe? If not, what is the backup plan?



How are off-site first responders trained?
If relying on offsite response, are plans in place to gain access to the site? Will
the Licensee grant them access? How have the responders been trained? Are
they in standby to respond within the required period of time?



Will jurisdictional conflicts delay first responders?
SONGS is located in the northernmost edge of San Diego County and a few
hundred feet from the Orange County line on a Marine Base, in a State Park. How
has First Responder jurisdiction been prioritized?



Is the recovery equipment staged?
Is the equipment protected and maintained by qualified personnel? Is an adequate
water supply being provided along with pumps sufficient to simultaneously
needed to remove cooling blockage? Are pumps and hoses staged to remove
blockage?



Have radiation levels and ambient temperatures been considered for flushing
potential blockage?



Do procedures presently exist to remove flow blockage should a flooding
event occur?



Are the recovery actions incorporated into existing procedures? Are recovery
personnel trained and do they routinely practice these actions?

20) On October 19, 2020, I discussed my concerns with the NRC’s Office of the Inspector
General.
21) On October 20, 2020, I participated in an NRC “WebEx” meeting and informed the NRC
staff, which was chartered to revise Management Directive 8.11, that the staff continues to
provide misleading information to the Petitioner when responding to a 10 CFR 2.206
petition. This contention of misleading information is clearly described above related to Mr.

William’s letter to Public Watchdogs on September 1, 2020.
22) The Task Force assigned to revise Management Directive 8.11 must provide assurance that
information provided to the public complies with the same requirements imposed on
licensees for 10 CFR § 50.5 Deliberate Misconduct10 and 10 CFR § 50.9 Completeness and
accuracy of information.11
23) The NRC’s letter of September 21, 2020, finally concludes and rejects the petition by stating:
“Having considered the results of NRC’s evaluation of the UMAX system,
inspection reports, SCE evaluations, the petition itself, and the supplemental
information Public Watchdogs provided, the PRB’s final determination is that all
the concerns identified in the petition that were not screened out fail to meet the
acceptance criteria in MD 8.11, Section III.C.1(b), because the issues raised in
the petition have been “the subject of a facility-specific or generic NRC staff
review,” and none of the circumstances in Section III.C.1(b)(ii) of MD 8.11
apply.”
The statement above is knowingly inaccurate in that the NRC, in all of the references
provided in its September 1, 2020 letter, failed to consider the possibility of multiple
flooded VVM’s. Had statements such as the above originated from a licensee or supplier, it
would be considered a violation of 10 CFR § 50.9, “Completeness and accuracy of
information” and would be considered a candidate for criminal charges 12.

Paul M. Blanch
October 28, 2020,

10

Code of Federal Regulations § 50.5 Deliberate misconduct at https://bit.ly/3e2NbR3
Code of Federal Regulations § 50.9 Completeness and accuracy of information at https://bit.ly/3jvpB0p
12
Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 as Amended 42 USC 2273
11

